
Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a 
Llywodraeth Leol
Lleoliad:
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 4 Tachwedd 
2015
Amser: 09.00

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a:
Sarah Beasley
Clerc y Pwyllgor
0300 200 6565 
SeneddCCLLL@Cynulliad.Cymru

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon  a datganiadau o fuddiant
 

2 Ymchwiliad i’r Adolygiad o Siarter y BBC: sesiwn dystiolaeth 1 - 
S4C
(09.00 - 10.00)  

 Huw Jones, Cadeirydd, S4C
 Ian Jones, Prif Weithredwr, S4C

Egwyl (10.00 - 10.15) 

3 Ymchwiliad i’r Adolygiad o Siarter y BBC: sesiwn dystiolaeth 2 - 
BECTU, Equity ac Undeb Cenedlaethol y Newyddiadurwyr (NUJ)
(10.15 - 11.15) (Tudalennau 1 - 22) 

Simon Curtis, Equity
David Donovan, BECTU
Paul Siegert, Undeb Cenedlaethol y Newyddiadurwyr

4 Papurau i’w nodi
(Tudalennau 23 - 81) 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod

 

6 Ymchwiliad i’r Adolygiad o Siarter y BBC - trafod y dystiolaeth a 
gafwyd yn ystod sesiynau 1 a 2
(11.15 - 11.30)  

7 Trafod Bil Cymru Drafft
(11.30 - 12.30) (Tudalennau 82 - 108) 



Response to Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
Inquiry into the BBC Charter Review 
 
1. Equity represents 40,102 performers and creative personnel working across the UK’s 

creative industries. Our members include actors, singers, dancers, variety artists, stage 
managers and stunt performers who work across various sectors including theatre, light 
entertainment, television, film, video games and the music industry.  
 

2. In Wales, we have 1,479 members living in Wales and many members who work in Wales 
but do not live here. We estimate that around 450 members are Welsh Speakers.  

 
3. The UK currently has a number of competitive advantages in the creative industries. 

According to the Department for Culture, Media and Sport, the creative industries now 
account for economic output of at least £77bn per annum.  This translates to more than 5% 
of UK GDP and is one of the largest areas of growth in the UK economy.   

 
4. The UK is a world leader in content production, including public service broadcasting, 

theatre, film and music. The UK video games sector has had a number of successes and has 
the potential for further growth. Creative content is also a key driver of other sectors, such 
as the digital economy. Cultural experiences, particularly the live arts, also underpin the UK’s 
ability to benefit from tourism. 

 
5. The factors which will sustain the UK’s competitive advantage in the creative industries are 

those which will enable creative organisations and businesses to continue to produce the 
best content in order to meet demand at home and abroad. The key interventions which will 
promote conditions for success are: the retention of a highly skilled and valued creative 
workforce, sustainable funding for the arts, investment in public service broadcasting, a 
strategy for the film and video games industries, a fully functioning intellectual property 
regime and support for the grassroots of the creative industries including live 
entertainment. 

 
Public Service Broadcasting 

6. One of Equity’s key objectives is to ensure that all broadcasters can continue to contribute 
positively to producing original British programming as much as possible in the digital age.  
Producing the broadest possible range of audiovisual content is in the interest of audiences 
and secures the UK’s competitive advantage in this field.  

 
7. The public service tradition in broadcasting has given the UK a reputation for producing 

programming of the highest quality – content that not only enhances this country’s culture 
but which is also makes a major economic contribution through overseas sales and licensing. 
For example, the BBC generates over £1bn through worldwide sales. For these reasons 
Equity strongly believes that the UK must commit resources towards ensuring plurality 
across the spectrum of public service content. 

 
8. Equity members have been concerned for some time that all of the UK’s nations and regions 

and nations should be able to take an active part in the creative industries and that work 
opportunities should be available throughout the UK. Currently performers who are not 
based in London and the South East of England often struggle to find enough employment to 

Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 1 / Paper 1 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 3



sustain a career in the entertainment industry and many are forced to relocate to London in 
order to access opportunities. Employment in film and television production in particular is 
heavily concentrated in London and the South East.  

 
9. England’s population dominates the UK, accounting for 84% (53.9 million people) of the 

total population, while Scotland accounts for 8% (5.3 million people), Wales for 5% (3.1 
million people) and Northern Ireland for 3% (1.8 million people). Each nation has its own 
identity, however, and it is important that Broadcasters reflect these differences. It is also 
important to note that London accounts for just 13% of the total population (8.2 million 
people). Including the rest of south east England brings this total to 27%, or 16.8 million 
people, so most of the UK population lives outside that part of the UK where most of the 
programmes have historically been made. Source - Ofcom 

 
10. A number of regionally-badged programmes are also produced or partly produced in other 

countries including Wallander (filmed in Sweden) Robin Hood (filmed in Hungary), The 
Musketeers (filmed in the Czech Republic), Merlin (external scenes filmed in France) and the 
upcoming BBC Cymru Wales Drama production of War and Peace which was filmed in 
Russia, Latvia and Lithuania. It is evident that Broadcasters make programmes in the Nations 
and regions for broadcast across the whole of the UK. Such programmes include drama set 
in the nations and regions, such as Shetland, The Fall, Vera, Broadchurch and Cucumber (you 
will note the lack of a Welsh made product in that list); and programmes made outside 
London which are more generic, such as Waterloo Road, Doctor Who and Casualty. In so 
doing, they can portray the Nations and regions not only to themselves but to the rest of the 
UK, in high quality productions that achieve mass audiences, with budgets which would not 
be affordable for programmes made specifically for each Nation or region. However, this is 
not a guarantee that the particular Nation or region will be portrayed in the programme; 
this depends on how the area is used in the production (for example, Liverpool doubles for 
Birmingham in Peaky Blinders).  

 
11.  Equity is also concerned that a large number of regionally-badged programmes are actually 

being produced by London based companies, who may run auditions or make casting 
decisions in London rather than in the nations and regions. Equity has long been 
campaigning to persuade Ofcom to incorporate a meaningful ratio of “on screen talent” into 
their definition of what constitutes an out of London production. At the moment “on screen 
talent” is specifically excluded.  

 
12. Broadcasters should be encouraged to support this greater spread of commissioning and 

explore long-term methods of developing and sustaining regional production in parts of the 
country that are not represented on screen.  One of the best ways in which this can be 
achieved is by the establishment of returning drama serials.  The fact that this genre of 
production has a distinct long-term benefit for the local production infrastructure means 
that it should be subject to particular encouragement. 

 
13. The role of the BBC as a cornerstone for UK made content is, however, vital for the 

sustainability of the UK’s creative industries. Various factors, including the downturn in 
advertising revenue experienced by other PSBs during the recession and the historical lack 
of investment by the majority of digital and satellite channels in original drama, children’s 

Tudalen y pecyn 2



and comedy programming have had a huge knock-on effect on the employment prospects 
and job security of performers and other creative workers in the sector.  

 
14. As a world, UK national and Welsh broadcaster, the BBC plays a crucial role in our economy, 

both as an employer and an exporter of goods. It also acts as a standard bearer for the 
audio-visual sector in terms of quality, diversity, and innovation. The BBC also has an 
important role in sustaining the independent production sector.  Without the BBC’s 
investment and commissioning, the UK’s production base, which also serves the UK film 
industry, would not be as strong as it is today.   

 
15. This is only possible because the BBC is supported by unique sources of funding, including 

the licence fee and its commercial operations.  Licence fee payers rightly expect to receive 
good value for money in terms of high quality programmes and new innovations and 
services responding to developments in technology and the wider media industry.  

 
16. A particularly good example of competitive advantage and value for money is BBC Radio, 

which has demonstrated that the unique system of funding alongside public service 
obligations can result in the production of high quality programming not available anywhere 
else. Radio drama and comedy, which is only found on the BBC, gives young writers and 
performers a chance to build their careers, take risks and develop their skills, as well as 
employing the proven skills of mature actors and writers. 

 
17. The BBC is the largest employer of actors and performers in the UK and provides a wealth of 

training opportunities for creative workers. Because of the investments it makes across a 
diversity of disciplines, including drama, comedy, entertainment, as well as factual 
programming, the BBC is able to provide decent jobs and engaging work for Equity 
members. 

 
18. The Task and Finish Group on the future outlook for the media in Wales reported in May 

2012 and made 23 recommendations to the WAG, first and foremost an independent forum 
to advise on policy in relation to the media in Wales. 22 of the 23 recommendations were 
accepted, except the independent forum which was instead replaced by a Broadcast 
Advisory Panel reporting directly to the First Minister. Since it first met in September 2012 
the panel has yet to issue a public report.  

 
19. Channel 4 should be challenged about the opportunities it offers in Wales. The Channel has 

pledged with a license obligation to make 9% of its content in the Nations by 2020.  
 

20. As identified above, Ofcom has a definition for ‘out of London’ production that excludes 
front of camera talent and activity. Equity urges the WAG to work with Ofcom to develop a 
more transparent and meaningful definition of a production’s location. 
 

The future provision of the BBC’s services in Wales, in both the English and Welsh languages; 
 

21. At its best Equity believes that the BBC should be: 
 

• A National Broadcaster committed to investment & programming in the Nations and 
regions.   

Tudalen y pecyn 3



• A Modern Broadcaster committed to on-screen diversity that reflects modern Britain. 
• A Universal Broadcaster committed to maintaining a universal service funded by the 

licence fee 
• A Trusted Broadcaster independent from government 
• A Quality Broadcaster committed to original TV and radio drama, comedy, 

entertainment and children’s programming 
• A Responsible Broadcaster committed to fair pay and conditions for the people working 

for it. 
 

22. In Equity’s view the BBC should set the standard for the UK’s creative industries in terms of 
producing high quality content and through its public purposes should lead on best 
practice in areas including employment standards, investing in the UK’s nations and 
regions and equality and diversity.  
 

23. Creative workers and performers are central to the sustainability and strength of the UK’s 
content production sector including the BBC’s output however, as they are mostly 
freelancers and self employed workers, they do not enjoy the same security or pay levels 
of directly employed workers. If the BBC is to continue to attract the best talent for its 
productions it must retain and improve terms and conditions and pay levels agreed with 
Equity and other trade unions for all performers. Specific references to best practice in 
employment, training and development, for both in-house and independent producers 
should therefore be included in the BBC’s public purposes. To strengthen this commitment 
and best practice, the Ofcom definition for regional programming should be changed to 
include front of camera talent which is currently excluded meaning the employment 
possibilities are limited – especially in the Nations and the regions. The BBC Trust response 
to the Green Paper states ‘Despite the BBC now siting half of its network TV production 
outside London, and establishing production bases, such as the Roath Lock drama village in 
Cardiff, there can still be periods where specific representation of some nations and 
regions does not occur. It is important both to site production outside of London, and also 
to consider commissioning and use of locations and on- and off- screen talent’.  

 
24. The BBC is an important component in addressing the regional imbalance in employment 

opportunities in the media.  Film and television production is heavily concentrated in 
London and the South East. As a result, performers in the UK’s nations and regions often 
struggle to find enough employment to sustain a career and many are forced to move to 
London in order to access opportunities. All broadcasters should increase their investment 
in the nations and regions so that a greater proportion of production employment, 
including performing talent, is spread across the UK. The BBC should lead the way in 
investing in underrepresented areas and should have a specific responsibility towards 
contributing to growth in the employment in the creative industries, particularly in Wales. 
 

25. The public purposes should also include a commitment for the BBC to reflect society better 
through on-screen diversity. Equity has welcomed the Project Diamond initiative whereby 
the main television broadcasters will collect equality monitoring data for all employment 
on and off screen however, in order to ensure continued progress, equality and diversity 
must be codified. We believe that the best place for this is in the public purposes so that 
diversity has the status of a key performance indicator for the BBC. We need to make sure 

Tudalen y pecyn 4



that the BBC is meeting the proposed Public Purpose ‘To reflect, represent and serve 
everyone in the UK’.  

 
26. The Government, via the DCMS consultation on Charter Renewal, has suggested that it 

may be appropriate to include a commitment to certain genres of content in public 
purposes. While Equity believes that the BBC should continue to provide a universal 
service and to produce content for everyone we believe it is worth considering a 
commitment in the public purposes to producing high quality original TV and radio drama, 
comedy, entertainment and children’s programming. It is a BBC priority to invest in its 
content, and to invest in the Nations. 

 
27. While network production in the Nations has grown in real terms since 2008, spend on 

first-run programming specifically for each Nation and region (including news and current 
affairs) fell from £404million in 1998 to £358million in 2008 and to £277million in 2014. 
Wales has seen one of the steepest real declines in spend on first-run originations between 
2008 and 2014 of 30%. This decline in spend has been matched, for the most part, by 
declines in hours. BBC Hours in the English language have dropped between 2008 and 
2014. Source – Ofcom 

 
28. Between 1998 and 2012 the BBC in Wales was exemplary in its investment in regional 

drama. Series like The Bench, Belonging, Crash and latterly The Baker Boys and The Indian 
Doctor have all been made in Wales for Wales. It would have been even more satisfying if 
any of these productions had been made for network, but that was not their prime 
purpose. They fulfilled an important cultural need, namely that the national broadcaster 
told stories about Wales to Wales. It is disappointing to see that this success has not been 
continued, and the cut in spend is directly attributable. In the BBC response to the Green 
Paper it made the following statement ‘We believe that the supply of BBC and 
commercially funded programming in each of the Nations needs addressing’. However it 
goes on to say that significant investment would be required and that this can only be 
funded by additional income.  

 
29. This is equally true of the investment in drama and light entertainment in Radio Wales and 

Radio Cymru. There is no other broadcaster other than the BBC providing this breadth of 
work for actors and writers in radio, but this again has been in decline.  

 
30. The provision for Welsh Language programming is made up mainly of the making of Pobol 

y Cwm  which is a contractual obligation under the Framework agreement.  
 
The BBC’s current and future funding, governance and accountability arrangements as they 
relate to Wales; 
 
31. Out of the £3.7 billion license fee income, approximately £179 million can be identified as 

being generated by Wales. By comparison to other Nations and regions the Operational 
expenditure of the BBC in Wales of £150 million is a high percentage of the license fee 
earned here but it is only 3.85% of the overall operational expenditure of the BBC in total. 
Disproportionately 65.44% of the £3.7 billion is spent in London. If the proportion of 
productions made in the Nations and Regions, especially when they are regionally badged 

Tudalen y pecyn 5



and funded, is supposed to increase then this task is made all the more harder by the 
relative imbalance of the distribution of the license fee. Source BBC Annual Report 2014 
 

32. The BBC’s independence from Government and its position in terms of being neither a state 
broadcaster nor one driven by commercial interests is highly valued by UK and international 
audiences and is the basis of much of the trust invested by audiences in the organisation. 
We therefore also believe that the BBC’s independence should feature strongly in any set of 
new public purposes drafted during Charter Renewal. 

 
33. Whilst we welcome the BBC’s commitment to protect funding for the Nations, this is only 

by way of ensuring that they are cut less than other areas. This can only be achieved by 
making sure investment works harder and portrays the whole country and its entire 
Nations better. We believe the BBC in Wales should be more accountable to the WAG and 
Equity supports the recommendation from the Silk Commission that a devolved devolved 
governing body should be created within the framework of the UK trust, with the powers 
to oversee and scrutinise the output of the BBC in Wales, and to appoint a Welsh 
representative to the general governing body of the BBC, by formal agreement between 
the UK and Welsh Governments. It is, however, difficult to know whether this will now 
work within the new format being suggested by the BBC and the BBC Trust for the 
reformed structure of an Executive Board 

 
S4C’s future, including its funding, operating and governance arrangements, and the services 
it provides; 

 
34. S4C is a unique investment in the Welsh language and a cornerstone for Welsh culture.  It is 

also a source as far as Equity is concerned of significant employment. Many of the actors 
that are gracing stages and feature films across the world served their apprenticeship on the 
channel. There are many talented performers working hard on a day to day basis and the 
quality of the drama output is consistently high. 
 

35.  In evidence to the Silk Commission Equity supported the case for Broadcasting not to be 
devolved whilst contained in its current format. We did support, however, the transfer of 
the DCMS monies to be the responsibility of the WAG which would ensure some active 
review process of the work of this channel by the WAG. Whilst we know this has been 
resisted by the Labour administration in Wales, mainly because of the financial 
commitment, it is absurd that the National Broadcaster for Wales does not have any formal 
relationship with the National Assembly. It may be that Equity would have to shift its 
support for S4C to be a matter that is devolved, but whilst it remains part of the BBC License 
Fee we can only call for the funding for S4C to be ring fenced and protected as part of the 
license fee settlement.  

 
36. Equity supported the calls for an independent review of S4C in 2010 and 2011, we believe 

now as we did then that any decisions on future funding and governance should have been 
based on this review. Equity can see now that S4C, in receiving its funding from a top slicing 
of the BBC license fee, is now no more than a balance sheet figure to support the BBC’s 
commitment to the Nations and Regions. In the BBC response to the Green Paper it reduces 
its comment on S4C to that of a full commitment to broadcasting and providing services in 
the UK’s indigenous minority languages. A comment from the BBC Annual Report reflects on 

Tudalen y pecyn 6



dropping audience figures for S4C as a concern in providing ‘value for the license fee spend’. 
We believe that S4C is more important than that, which is why we have supported the 
channel since it first started broadcasting. It has bought over £2.2billion pounds in to the 
Welsh economy and is almost entirely responsible for the independent production sector 
within Wales.  

 
37. The combined spend of S4C and the BBC on programming for S4C, in real terms, was 

£92million in 2013. S4C has seen a large real-terms decline in first-run spend, which fell by 
£23million from 2009 to 2013, to £64million. This means that 57% of the total programming 
is either a repeat of a recent programme or something from the archive. Whilst the archive 
is valuable and the average cost of retransmitting these programmes is very low compared 
to the £32,000 per hour needed for newly commissioned programmes we cannot help but 
look at the drop in funding and the frequency of these repeats in peak hours as a reason for 
the S4C audience share falling to 1% in the BARB figures in 2014, from 1.3% in 2010.  

 
38. It is vital that S4C has sufficient funding as well as editorial and managerial independence for 

it to continue to play a crucial role in support of the Welsh language and the creative 
industries in Wales. 

 
How Wales’s interests are being represented during the renewal process. 
 
39. It is difficult to find specific Welsh pledges being put forward during the process, much of 

the commitment to secure funding is aimed at the ‘Nations and Regions’. The production 
base for the BBC in Wales does make a difference, but makes mainly network drama rather 
than drama for Wales set in Wales. Equity believes greater focus should be put on 
accountability and that BBC Cymru Wales should be fulfilling its own obligation to Wales first 
and network second.  
 

40. Because of the license fee settlement we are unlikely to see separate funding for S4C, and it 
is because of the obligations on the BBC to pay for S4C, The World Service and now for the 
over 75’s free licenses, that extra pressure is being put on budgets to fund its own corporate 
needs. The funding of S4C is the least worst outcome, as long as the funds are protected 
going forward and are not seen as another department when it comes to the continued 
efficiency savings necessary. 
 

41. Equity does not believe that Wales’s interests have been represented sufficiently during the 
renewal process. The WAG was not given the same provision as the Scottish Government 
under the Smith Commission, and because broadcasting is not devolved the responses have 
been lacking in focus because there isn’t a firm policy for how the WAG deals with 
broadcasting and in particular BBC Cymru Wales and S4C. On such an important issue there 
was a need for a single message on how the broadcasters could serve Wales rather than 
responses based on party lines and self interest.  
 

42. The Broadcasting Advisory Panel set up in 2012 to report directly to the First Minister on 
matters of this kind have failed to report formally, and would seem to have been the perfect 
focus point for a consistent message about broadcasting in Wales even if it isn’t devolved.  

 
Simon Curtis - National Organiser for Wales  scurtis@equity.org.uk 

Tudalen y pecyn 7



Equity response to the Department for Culture, Media and Sport public consultation on BBC 
Charter Review 
 
 
The BBC is one of the most important employers of Equity members because of the investments 
it makes across a diversity of output. It also plays an important role in supporting the wider 
creative industries through providing training and development for creative workers and 
provides much of the funding that fuels the UK’s independent production sector, another 
significant employer of Equity members. Equity therefore welcomes the publication of this 
Green Paper as an opportunity for those who play a crucial role in producing content across the 
audiovisual industries to have a say about the BBC’s future.  
 
Equity is however extremely disappointed and concerned that the publication of the Green 
Paper was preceded by another hastily agreed licence fee deal which we believe will lead to 
further cuts to services and job losses at the BBC. The public and those who work for the BBC 
were denied any say about the previous licence fee settlement in 2010 and it had been hoped 
that a much more transparent process would have taken place in 2015, particularly given the 
level of media speculation surrounding the BBC throughout the General Election campaign.  
 
Furthermore, the composition of the panel of experts advising the Secretary of State during 
Charter Renewal appears largely to reflect the political and commercial agendas of the BBC’s 
media rivals with only a small level of representation for licence fee payers. The panel does not 
include a single representative of the thousands of workers who contribute so much to the 
success of the BBC. In this environment Equity does not have faith that the process of Charter 
Renewal is being conducted in a fair or open fashion. 
 
Similarly, while the Green Paper itself asks a range of open and relevant questions in important 
areas including the BBC’s duties towards the UK’s nations and regions, accountability and the 
public purposes, it also contains many negative assertions about the BBC which do not appear 
to be evidenced, particularly in assessing the impact of the BBC on the wider content market.  
 
Equity is not without its criticisms of the BBC and we intend to express in this response how we 
believe it can change in order to better meet the expectations of licence fee payers. We strongly 
disagree, however, with the repeated assertion in this Green Paper that the BBC is somehow too 
large and too ‘diffuse’ in its output and therefore must be scaled back. While the Government 
has stated that it is ‘committed to both the future of the BBC and its underlying Reithian 
mission’ it is clear that this consultation is predicated on an assumption that the scope of the 
BBC must be scaled back. This is not in the interests of audiences who continue to be best 
served by a universal and inclusive BBC.  
 
1. How can the BBC’s public purposes be improved so there is more clarity about what the 

BBC should achieve? 
 
The public purposes are a relatively new development in the BBC’s history, having only come 
into being in 2007. Equity supported the existing public purposes of the BBC when they were 
first debated and we continue to support the rationale for having a set of broad, overarching 
objectives against which purpose remits and priorities can be identified.  Similarly, licence fee 
payers and the public generally support a broad remit for the BBC. Recent ICM research for the 

Tudalen y pecyn 8



BBC Trust found that 85 per cent of the public continue to support a BBC that ‘informs, educates 
and entertains’.1 
 
A broad set of high level public purposes should continue to underpin the work of the BBC in the 
next Charter period, however we agree that the public purposes could be reframed in order to 
provide more clarity for the public and in response to the needs of audiences and the rapidly 
changing and evolving nature of the wider creative industries.  
 
In Equity’s view the BBC should set the standard for the UK’s creative industries in terms of 
producing high quality content and should lead on best practice in areas including employment 
standards, investing in the UK’s nations and regions and equality and diversity. For example, the 
public purposes could be clearer and more specific regarding the expectation that the BBC 
should be a leader among broadcasters in relation to equality and diversity – both on and off air. 
The existing public purpose with the most resonance with diversity requires the BBC to 
‘Represent the Nations, Regions and Communities’. While there are clear implications for 
reflecting the diversity of the nation here, this could be made more explicit in meaning and 
measurement of performance and delivery ensuring there is greater accountability of the BBC in 
this area that there is at present. 
 
We believe that the BBC should be: 
 
• A National Broadcaster committed to national and regional investment & programming  
• A Modern Broadcaster committed to on-screen diversity that reflects modern Britain 
• A Universal Broadcaster committed to maintaining a universal service funded by the licence 

fee 
• A Trusted Broadcaster independent from government 
• A Quality Broadcaster committed to original TV and radio drama, comedy, entertainment 

and children’s programming 
• A Responsible Broadcaster committed to fair pay and conditions for the people working for 

it. 
 
2. Which elements of universality are most important for the BBC? 
 
Equity supports the continuance of the BBC as a broadcaster that provides a wide range of 
different types of content and programmes, for a wide range of different audience groups.  We 
do not believe that audience needs are better served by a more narrowly focused BBC and 
would disagree in particular with the contention that the broad mission of the BBC can lead to it 
‘competing for ratings, not quality, or distinctiveness, under the ‘entertainment’ banner’.  
 
Our members work across a range of BBC content including radio and television drama, comedy, 
entertainment and children’s programming and contribute to the success of programmes such 
as The Archers, Eastenders, Doctor Who and Strictly Come Dancing. Neither they, nor the 
millions of viewers who watch these programmes believe that the BBC is compromising on 
quality when it makes something that it is popular with audiences.  
 

1 http://downloads.bbc.co.uk/bbctrust/assets/files/pdf/news/2015/audience_research.pdf 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 9

http://downloads.bbc.co.uk/bbctrust/assets/files/pdf/news/2015/audience_research.pdf


The Green Paper asks if the BBC should instead focus on particular or underserved audiences. 
While Equity believes that the BBC should continue to serve audiences equally, audience 
research demonstrates the BBC could improve its offering to certain groups. Audience research 
finds that the BBC currently considerably underserves C2DE audiences, particularly young 
women and BAME audiences and within the latter group Black Caribbean and Black African 
audiences are particularly underserved.  
 
As stated previously in this response we also believe that the BBC could do more to address the 
portrayal of underrepresented groups and would suggest that the public purposes are modified 
in order to address on screen diversity as a priority. 
 
Equity also believes that the BBC should continue to make content available free at the point of 
use, on as wide a range of platforms as possible. In the changing context of the modern 
audiovisual industry, where audiences are fragmenting and younger viewers demonstrate a 
strong desire to consume content online it is imperative that the BBC is able to innovate and 
adapt its delivery mechanisms.  
 
The BBC led the way in terms of establishing services such as the iplayer and iplayer radio and 
Equity has been party to the launch of such services through the negotiation of agreements with 
the BBC for rights clearances. The experience of reaching such agreements has challenged 
established methods of working and negotiating but we support the BBC’s role as a creator of 
new digital services which are highly regarded by audiences. 
 
3. Should Charter Review formally establish a set of values for the BBC? 
 
The BBC showcases the UK to the rest of the world and sets standards for the rest of the audio-
visual sector. Alongside the NHS it is one of the UK’s most important institutions, especially now 
that the creative industries are acknowledged to be an important engine of growth for our 
economy.  The relationship between the public and the BBC is unique in UK society because of 
the licence fee funding model. It is therefore reasonable to expect that the BBC should uphold a 
set of values that the public would expect from an institution of such size and importance.  
 
However we do not believe it is not the job of a political process to set out what the 
organisational values of a broadcaster independent of government should be.  The BBC already 
formulates its own set of values including independence, quality and value for money, creativity 
and diversity.  
 
As outlined in the response to Qu.1 we believe instead that the public purposes should be 
reframed. Specific references to best practice in employment, training and development both 
for in-house and independent producers should be included in the BBC’s public purposes, as 
should an expectation for the BBC to better reflect society through on-screen diversity. On the 
latter point, Equity has welcomed the Project Diamond initiative whereby the main television 
broadcasters will collect equality monitoring data for all employment on and off screen however 
we agree with the consultation document that in order to ensure continued progress, equality 
and diversity must be codified. We believe that the best place for this is in the public purposes 
so that diversity has the status of a key performance indicator for the BBC. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 10



The BBC’s independence from Government and its position in terms of being neither a state 
broadcaster nor one driven by commercial interests is highly valued by UK and international 
audiences and is the basis of much of the trust invested by audiences in the organisation. We 
therefore also believe that the BBC’s independence should feature strongly in any set of values 
or new public purposes drafted during Charter Renewal. 
 
The Green Paper suggests that it may be appropriate to include a commitment to certain genres 
of content in public purposes. While Equity believes that the BBC should continue to provide a 
universal service and produce content for everyone it is sensible to consider a commitment to 
producing high quality original TV and radio drama, comedy, entertainment and children’s 
programming.  
 
Finally, the BBC is an important component in addressing the regional imbalance in employment 
opportunities in the media.  Film and television production is heavily concentrated in London 
and the South East. As a result, performers in the UK’s nations and regions often struggle to find 
enough employment to sustain a career and many are forced to move to London in order to 
access opportunities. All broadcasters should invest in the nations and regions so that a greater 
proportion of production employment, including performing talent, is spread across the UK. The 
BBC should lead the way in investing in underrepresented areas and in particular Scotland, 
Wales, Northern Ireland and the Midlands. 
 
4. Is the expansion of the BBC’s services justified in the context of increased choice for 

audiences? Is the BBC crowding out commercial competition and, if so, is this justified? 
 
Equity takes the opposite view. In recent years, due to pressure exerted by politicians and media 
rivals the BBC has been forced to narrow the range of services available to the public. The 
licence fee freeze which began in 2010 has already led to a 16per cent shortfall in funding, huge 
job cuts and budget reductions for important genres such as radio and television drama.  
 
Cuts have been made to the BBC Performing Groups, including the BBC Singers who have been 
reduced from a core group of 24 to 18.  This will undoubtedly have an impact on the quality of 
the group and its output. Earlier this year Equity also urged the BBC Trust to consider carefully 
how the decision to move BBC3 online, a decision made in response to funding cuts, interacts 
with the BBC’s role in providing public service television for younger audiences and its 
commitment to funding comedy. In particular Equity stressed that the BBC must consider if its 
offerings to younger audiences and its comedy output can continue to compete with that of 
other broadcasters. 
 
These cuts and others including to services such as the Asian Network have threatened plurality 
and could be further exacerbated by proposed changes to television content supply which may 
be biased against investment in risk taking and the production of more challenging content.  
 
The BBC is not crowding out commercial competition, in fact it is more likely to invest in 
expensive genres such as drama and freed from commercial interests will continue to do so, as 
opposed to commercial operators who are more likely to buy content from abroad or pursue a 
higher proportion of formats which generate advertising revenue. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 11



The UK is a world leader in television content production. This reputation is built on a number of 
foundations, including the presence of the BBC and the availability of a highly skilled creative 
workforce, which includes performers. The UK has witnessed much lower levels of investments 
in television production during the last ten years and this has had a huge knock-on effect on the 
employment prospects and job security of performers as well as other creative workers in the 
sector. Notwithstanding welcome developments such as the tax reliefs for high end television 
content and children’s programming, ensuring that the BBC can maintain a solid level of 
investment in content production is vital for the sustainability of all of the UK’s creative 
industries. As part of this, the BBC’s in house production must be protected from full 
competition so that the UK’s content production base can weather any future downturn in 
investment by other broadcasters or international producers.  
 
The Green Paper suggests that ‘a smaller BBC could see the public pay less for their TV licence 
and would also be likely to have a reduced market impact’. It is disappointing that the 
Government wishes to limit the BBC’s ability to launch new services, innovate and create new 
kinds of format or delivery mechanisms. We should be proud of the fact that the UK is home to 
the world’s largest public service broadcaster and that despite a shortfall in funding in recent 
years has largely protected services that have emerged over the last twenty years in response to 
audience demand and changing viewing habits. 
 
5. Where does the evidence suggest that the BBC has a positive or negative wider impact on 

the market? 
 

The evidence supplied in the Green paper to assess the positive and negative market impacts of 
the BBC is not robust. On page 25 the phrase ‘some say that’ precedes two paragraphs of 
positive impacts that are generally acknowledged to be true: the BBC raises broadcasting 
standards generally; it invests more in content because of licence fee funding; it develops new 
technologies such as iplayer and independent producers and commercial broadcasters benefit 
from BBC investments in training and talent development. In contrast the negative impacts are 
enumerated in five paragraphs but refer only to online and local news, radio and the BBC’s cross 
promotional activities. 
 
It is difficult to find evidence that supports the view that the BBC has a negative market impact, 
especially on the wider television market. Recent results from ITV show a 23per cent increase in 
half year profits to £400m and full year profits are expected to be in the region of £850m. ITV is 
also engaged in a process of acquiring a number of independent production companies in the 
UK and the US in order to expand its production capacity. Sky currently boasts 12m customers in 
the UK and Ireland and has successful operations in a number of other European states. In 2015 
it is expected to reach record turnover and full year profits of £1.4bn. Amazon Prime and Netflix 
have experienced huge growth in the UK market and the latter has begun to invest in original UK 
drama productions.  
 
6. What role should the BBC have in influencing the future technological landscape including 

in future radio switchover? 
 
The BBC has a key role in making new services and platforms accessible to the public, without 
charging subscriptions. Equity has worked with the BBC in developing new and different 
platforms for content delivery and has consistently sought to ensure that content can be made 

Tudalen y pecyn 12



available for use on these platforms when made under Equity collective agreements.  Equity has 
also reached a number of agreements with the BBC for the use of work in its interactive services 
and has engaged constructively in order to reach long term arrangements for the engagement 
of performers on Equity agreements and the subsequent use of their material. For example, 
Equity is currently in negotiations with the BBC regarding rights clearances for performers 
whose work features on BBC3 in order to facilitate the move to an online channel. 
 
Suitable agreements must be concluded that recognise the rights of performers whose work is 
exploited across all BBC channels and platforms. It is essential that the rights of artists are 
protected and that they are rewarded appropriately for the future exploitation of work, 
especially considering the fact that the BBC can generate over £1bn through worldwide sales of 
its content portfolio. 
 
Separate from the BBC’s legitimate role as an innovator in digital services, it is regrettable that a 
large proportion of licence fee funding has been diverted for other purposes which have had 
variable levels of success. Equity welcomes the decision to phase out the allocation of £150m 
per year to support broadband roll-out from 2017. Local TV services are another area which we 
believe should not continue to be funded by the BBC post 2017. 
 
7. How well is the BBC serving its national and international audiences? 
 
A larger international audience is likely to lead to an increase in the market for programmes sold 
by BBC Worldwide, which in turn generates income for reinvestment in content. The target set 
by the Director General – that the BBC should have a global reach of 500m by 2022 – is one that 
Equity would support. It is disappointing, however, that there are limited opportunities to grow 
and develop the international audience for radio drama, especially given that the UK is a world 
leader in this genre. Following the cancellation of the radio drama Westway over 5 years ago 
there are no remaining slots on the World Service for spoken word programming. 
 
In terms of serving UK audiences Equity believes there is a pressing need for the BBC’s public 
purposes to provide a commitment to reflect modern Britain and to take action to address on 
screen diversity.  As the BBC Trust’s Purpose Remit Survey illustrates, audiences from black 
ethnic groups are least likely to say that the BBC is effective at representing their ethnicity. 
Ofcom’s Public Service Broadcasting Review also reports that several audience groups are 
concerned about how they are portrayed on screen across the UK’s PSB channels - particularly 
people from BAME backgrounds or people with disabilities. They believe that they are either 
being under-represented or unfairly portrayed. Similarly, Equity has been concerned for some 
time that all broadcasters should do more to better represent and portray the LGBT community 
and women, particularly older women.  
 
Equity has previously welcomed the BBC’s commitment to produce 17per cent of network 
television production from the UK’s Nations by 2016. While other broadcasters and producers 
have recently made considerable and welcome investments in television content production 
outside of London and the South East, including HBO’s decision to film Game of Thrones in 
Northern Ireland, the BBC remains uniquely placed to work across all of the UK’s nations and 
regions to create a positive impact on the production base and workforce.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 13



Recent investments made by the BBC in the Nations and Regions, including its move to Salford 
and the increase in drama production in sites such as Roath Lock studios are very welcome. 
Local casting, however, which should be a key component of regional production, is sadly 
lacking. Often a programme is labelled ‘BBC Northern Ireland’, ‘BBC Scotland’ or ‘BBC Wales’ but 
in reality there are few – if any – opportunities for performers in the Nations to appear in them.  
 
On-screen talent is currently excluded from most targets and regional production quotas set by 
Ofcom and the BBC however there is a pressing need to ensure that opportunities are opened 
up to local talent. Equity has been campaigning for many years to encourage broadcasters to 
undertake more local casting and to encourage Ofcom to consult with stakeholders about an 
appropriate inclusion of on-screen talent in its definition of an Out of London production.  
 
Equity supports the recommendations of the Smith Commission including a formal consultative 
role for the Scottish government and the Scottish Parliament in the process of reviewing the 
BBC's Charter. We also agree that there should be new responsibilities for the BBC to lay its 
annual report and accounts before the Scottish Parliament and submit reports to, and appear 
before, committees of the Scottish Parliament in relation to matters relating to Scotland in the 
same way as it does in the UK Parliament. 
 
Equity further believes that the BBC must also spend more on original drama production in the 
English regions and particularly the Midlands following a migration away from the area over 
several years by the BBC and other broadcasters. The Midlands offers affordable housing and 
quality of life to people working in the creative industries. Currently many actors, particularly 
high profile actors, are forced to move to London or Manchester to access work and auditions, 
where housing and living costs, particularly for young people starting out in their career, are 
more expensive than in the Midlands. Similarly media and other students graduating from 
Birmingham City University frequently relocate to find work. The Midlands also offers diverse 
range of locations for filming, including Birmingham City Centre, where permission to film is 
considerably cheaper than other city centres. Consideration should also be given as to how 
investment can be attracted for new studio facilities in the region. 
 
8. Does the BBC have the right genre mix across its services? 
 
The BBC has a duty to foster creativity and nurture talent across a wide range of genres. It is 
troubling to note the reduction in BBC network TV hours for drama - down from 2062 hours in 
2006 to 1344 hours in 2014, children’s programming – down from 10989 to 9074 hours and 
entertainment – down from 2384 to 1118 hours. The Green paper rightly identifies that costs 
are increasing in areas such as television drama production but there is no acknowledgement 
that many of the savings which have led to a decrease in certain genres have been forced on the 
BBC by funding cuts resulting from the 2010 licence fee settlement. In this environment Equity 
has strongly supported the efforts made by the BBC to maintain and where possible increase 
investment in television drama. 
 
Equity members working in variety and light entertainment have been concerned for some time 
that UK broadcasters including the BBC do not offer a sufficient range of entertainment 
programming in their schedules, partly due to the dominance of reality based formats in this 
genre. This issue is somewhat borne out in the figures mentioned above, where entertainment 
programming appears to have suffered a disproportionate decline. 

Tudalen y pecyn 14



 
The reduction in hours devoted to radio drama from 4719 to 4280 hours per year in the same 
period is equally concerning, especially considering that this genre represents a very cost 
effective form of production. Traditionally genres such as radio drama have had a key role in 
helping the BBC to nurture new talent. Spoken word programming offers a platform for artists 
just starting out in their careers.  Radio drama has also enabled established writers and 
performers to take risks and maintain and develop their skills.  
 
The BBC is still by far the most prolific radio drama broadcaster in the world, making more 
original productions than Hollywood. Without the BBC, there would be very little provision for 
niche audiences and the promotion of radio drama would suffer greatly.  That is not to say that 
radio drama is a niche product. Over one million listeners access spoken word programming on 
the BBC every day. Without licence fee funding, working alongside public service obligations this 
sort of high quality programming, which attracts a significant audience, would not be available 
anywhere else. 
 
Radio Four has historically been a major showcase of radio drama and the short story however 
in 2012 the number of short stories broadcast on Radio 4 reduced from three to one a week in 
order to make way for an extension of the World at One from 30 to 45 minutes. Radio 4 also cut 
slots for new writing from three to two and the number of listener slots (of which there were six 
as recently as 2009) from four to two. Spoken word programming slots have been lost across a 
number of services including Silver Street on the Asian Network, the Friday play, short stories 
and there has been an overall reduction in radio drama output aimed at children across the 
BBC’s radio services. 
 
Equity members with disabilities have also pointed out that cutting short story reading, 
combined with the continuing cuts being made to radio drama generally, is of specific detriment 
to audiences with sight impairments. A commitment to encouraging more spoken word 
programming across the BBC’s radio stations should therefore be a priority. Equity fears that if 
the number of productions continues to drop, radio drama could sink below the critical mass 
that will keep it viable.  
 
9. Is the BBC’s content sufficiently high quality and distinctive from that of other 

broadcasters? What reforms could improve it? 
 
Audiences appear to think that the BBC’s content is sufficiently high quality and distinctive. The 
Green Paper itself cites findings from the BBC Trust’s Purpose Remit Survey 2013 which states 
that 76per cent of audiences think that the BBC already makes high quality programmes or 
online content. 74per cent think that the BBC has a wide range of enjoyable and entertaining 
programmes and online content. Figures from Ofcom also support the view that audiences are 
largely satisfied with the output from the main public service broadcasters. Ofcom’s PSB Review 
found that half of all TV viewing is on these main channels - but that figure rises to more than 
70per cent when the time shifted channels are taken into account. 
 
The BBC is much more likely to invest in high quality genres such as television drama and UK 
originated children’s programming. Freed from commercial interests it will continue to do so, as 
opposed to commercial operators who are more likely to buy content from abroad or pursue a 
larger proportion of formats such as reality shows that generate advertising revenue. Ofcom’s 

Tudalen y pecyn 15



latest Public Service Broadcasting Review reports that investment in television drama has fallen 
by 44per cent since 2008 and notes that the declining level of investment by ITV is of concern. 
The Review also finds that the BBC accounts for 97per cent of children’s content production – 
spending by ITV, Channel 4 and Channel 5 in this genre has fallen by 74per cent since 2008. 
 
Looking beyond television, recent pressures on funding have meant that it is difficult to 
maintain the high standards and quality in areas of spoken word programming on BBC radio. 
Increasingly fewer actors are cast in radio drama productions and there are diminishing 
opportunities for lesser known actors and writers to enter the field.  There also appears to be a 
lack of talent development as rehearsal and recording times have been reduced, impacting on 
the ability of writers and performers to experiment and improve productions.   
 
Radio drama is a specialised skill area and one that feeds through talent, in terms of writers and 
performers, into many other areas of BBC production including television drama and comedy. If 
this genre is to survive, the BBC must make a clear commitment to preserve existing funding for 
services such as Radio 4 and Radio 3 and must endeavour to expand the number of slots 
available, particularly for low cost content such as short stories.  
 
In this environment it makes sense for the BBC to have a commitment, through the public 
purposes, to producing high quality original TV and radio drama, comedy, entertainment and 
children’s programming. Other reframed public purposes, such as a commitment to equality, 
diversity and on and off screen portrayal of modern Britain could also offer genuine scope for 
greater originality and distinctiveness. 
 
10. How should the system of content production be improved through reform of quotas or 

more radical options? 
 
Future proposals outlined in the Green Paper and recently explored by the BBC Trust and the 
BBC Executive to remove the current in house guarantee or to privatise or otherwise reorganise 
the BBC’s TV production unit could, in Equity’s view, have damaging consequences for the BBC, 
those who work for the BBC and its audiences. The recent creation of BBC studios is particularly 
concerning and in Equity’s view safeguards must be put in place to ensure that, like BBC 
Worldwide, BBC Studios remain an associated body of the BBC, rather than being created with a 
view to privatisation.  
 
It is not clear how an immediate move to open competition and abandonment of the existing 
quotas for content production can better deliver high quality and creative content. If there is to 
be more open competition between the BBC’s in house production unit and independent 
production companies of all sizes there is a risk that this could lead to market pressures 
challenging public service broadcasting values.  
 
One of the strengths of the BBC’s in house production is that it creates programmes aimed at 
niche audiences as well as formats which attract large audiences and have a potentially global 
appeal. If BBC production is put on a more competitive footing, more resources may be directed 
towards the latter, particularly if the BBC is seeking to compete for more work from other 
broadcasters. Greater competition could also lead to a greater focus on mass appeal 
productions and less emphasis on risk taking by the BBC and independent producers. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 16



Increased competition could also cause the BBC’s production unit to cut costs by considering a 
reduction in permanently employed staff or by investing less in skills development and training. 
A more aggressive competitive environment for content production could also lead to a 
reduction in terms and conditions offered to performers and other creative workers. This would 
not be conducive to maintaining the capacity of the workforce or in encouraging diversity. 
 
There are other mechanisms which we believe the BBC Executive should explore before making 
changes to the content quotas in order to encourage more creativity. These include considering 
how the current commissioning process can be improved, as well as exploring how BBC 
production staff can be better supported to pursue their ideas and work more creatively. 
 
Our members are very strongly in favour of an approach to content supply that can facilitate the 
continuation and an expansion in the production of original and high quality drama, comedy, 
entertainment and children’s programmes made in and about the UK. For these reasons Equity 
continues to support the existing mixed economy model of content supply for the BBC. Over 
time and in response to changes in the sector this model has changed and has opened up 
opportunities for independent producers, however we also continue to strongly support the 
existence of the in house guarantee and believe that the level at which it is currently set is 
reasonable.  
 
A critical part of the mixed economy approach is the continued use of appropriate union 
agreements covering the engagement and remuneration of performers. There have been recent 
incidences where the BBC have sought to source content from new providers, in some cases 
procuring from individual members of the public through the use of online engagement and 
other mechanisms. This has led to confusion and disagreements about the appropriate level of 
payment and/or rights due to contributors. Similarly, the increase in investment in co-
productions by the BBC and particularly the increase in content produced in other European 
countries must respect existing agreements covering terms and conditions for performers.  
 
Equity is also concerned about plans to phase out quotas in radio and to give radio 
independents greater opportunities to compete for commissions – this could lower standards, 
particularly employment standards in an area where production margins are already tight and 
funding cuts have had an impact on content production in spoken word programming. 
 
The Green Paper implies that reform of the BBC’s content quotas could include a review of the 
arrangements for regional production, most notably in the Midlands.  It is unclear to Equity how 
increased competition between the BBC and independent producers, the BBC Studios proposal 
or the option to directly scale back in house production will provide a better basis for increased 
investment throughout the UK’s nations and regions however we welcome the Government’s 
acknowledgement of this problem and point to the response to Qu 7 for suggestions to reform 
regional production quotas and improve regional investment. 
 
11. How should we pay for the BBC and how should the licence fee be modernised? 
 
Licence fee payers and representatives of those working at the BBC are united in their 
condemnation of the most recent licence fee settlement reached in secret between the 
Government and the BBC in the days leading up to the July 2015 Budget.  Given recent events 
Equity is in favour of including a new legal obligation in the Royal Charter for Government to 

Tudalen y pecyn 17



consult either directly with the public or via any future regulator of the BBC and to seek 
Parliamentary approval for any changes to the BBC’s funding. 
 
Taking on the funding of free licences for the over 75s is inappropriate as it confers social policy 
responsibilities on to the BBC and is likely to lead to a significant shortfall in BBC funding post 
2018, despite the Government’s commitment to end top slicing for broadband rollout and the 
potential new income arising from the closure of the catch up TV loophole. The projected 
shortfall in funding could be as much as £350m and this will inevitably lead to large scale job 
losses, content budget cuts and service closures.  
 
Equity is also extremely concerned that the commitment to a CPI increase in the licence fee is 
dependent on the outcome of Charter Renewal. This creates undue leverage for the 
Government during negotiations and compromises the independence of the BBC from 
Government. 
 
Equity continues to support the Licence Fee as the most appropriate funding method for the 
BBC.  It provides a direct link between licence fee payers and the BBC, it provides sustainable 
and predictable funding, maintains the independence of the BBC from Government and enables 
the BBC to produce programming that other services would not fund. Of the three funding 
models outlined in the Green Paper for the short to medium term we support the ‘reformed 
licence fee’ option as it removes the catch up TV loophole, thereby increasing income for the 
BBC. It also goes some way towards creating parity between users of the BBC’s broadcast and 
digital services.  
 
Equity agrees that it is not appropriate to consider funding the BBC from general taxation or by 
allowing the BBC to show advertising. The former option risks compromising the BBC’s 
independence and there is no appetite from viewers for the latter option.  If advertising were 
introduced on the BBC there is a strong chance it would diminish the value of the advertising 
market and could lead to a decline in revenues for other public service broadcasters.  
 
Throughout the Green Paper questions are raised about the need to continue to support the 
BBC’s universality. In the context of future funding models, a suggested long term proposal is a 
move to a subscription-funded model, initially for certain services.  Equity is strongly opposed to 
any replacement of the Licence Fee, in whole or in part, with pay-to-view subscription services 
or similar alternatives as this would signal the end of universality and break the link between the 
BBC and the general public. 
 
Introducing subscription based services would undermine the BBC’s ability to provide a range of 
content to audiences and as the Green Paper warns, could lead to the adoption of a much more 
commercial approach by the BBC. It is also unlikely that a subscription model for any of the 
BBC’s services would meet the fairness test outlined in the Green papers ‘funding model criteria’ 
as the level of subscription fees will likely be determined by supply and demand in the market, 
which could lead to certain groups of audiences paying more for their preferred services, or 
niche services becoming underfunded or unaffordable. 
 
12. Should the level of funding for certain services or programmes be protected? Should some 

funding be made available to other providers to deliver public service content? 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 18



The BBC should have exclusive use of licence fee funding. As stated elsewhere in this response, 
diverting licence fee funds for projects such as Local TV services, broadband roll out and 
bringing the World Service and BBC Monitoring within the BBC’s funding obligations has 
damaged the BBC’s ability to invest in its core work – producing content for audiences. 
 
In addition Equity does not support contestable budgets for areas such as drama or children’s 
content which would enable other broadcasters or producers to access licence fee funding, as 
suggested by the Green Paper. The BBC’s viewers have an expectation that the licence fees that 
they pay go predominantly towards funding the production of high quality programmes for the 
BBC.  Currently this is the case and indeed most UK drama production employing professional 
performers originates with the BBC. This volume and range of work would not be possible 
without licence fee funding.  
 
Drama productions funded by the BBC are either produced in-house or by commissioning 
independent producers. In this way the BBC is already supporting the wider creative sector and 
should not be top sliced further to fund programme making by other broadcasters. Equity is also 
opposed to the principle of contestable budgets for content. Licence fee funding should go 
towards BBC programme making and services and should not be distributed to commercial 
broadcasters to support the dividends and value of stock holdings of private shareholders.   
 
Equity also continues to be opposed to the inclusion of S4C within the BBC’s remit. S4C merits 
its own guaranteed Government funding allocation due to the prominence of the Welsh 
language however until this funding is restored funding for S4C, and particularly drama content 
for this channel must continue to be protected within the BBC’s budget. 
 
13. Has the BBC been doing enough to deliver value for money? How could it go further? 
 
The licence fee has been frozen for six years at £145.50. It is estimated that this equates to a 
16per cent real terms cut in resources – around £635m. As discussed elsewhere in this response, 
despite the BBC’s efforts to cut administration costs and protect content budgets, there have 
been significant cuts to some areas including television drama on BBC4, spoken word 
programming on radio and youth and comedy content production for BBC 3. The BBC Director 
General has stated that if further cuts are imposed on the BBC it is unlikely that they will be able 
to ‘salami slice’ budgets further – in reality difficult decisions including service closures will have 
to be contemplated.  
 
Equity has not been without criticism of spending decisions taken at the BBC, particularly 
regarding senior management pay and severance payments however the BBC continues to 
compare favourably with other broadcasters and services in terms of delivering value for 
money. The cost of an annual licence fee has gone up by just £10 since 2007. This contrasts 
sharply with annual rises in utility costs and specifically increases in energy prices. In some cases 
energy providers have increased their prices in excess of 10 per cent annually. 
 
There are however notable discrepancies between perceptions of the BBC’s value for money 
across ethnic groups and across the UK’s nations and regions. This is the most fruitful area that 
could be addressed during Charter Renewal through a refocusing of the BBC’s public purposes 
such that the BBC prioritises on screen diversity and investment in content production in the 
UK’s nations and regions.   

Tudalen y pecyn 19



 
14. How should the BBC’s commercial operations, including BBC worldwide, be reformed? 
 
Equity supports the commercial operations of the BBC but has acted robustly to ensure that the 
rights of artists are protected and that they are rewarded appropriately when their work is 
exploited in the commercial sphere. Alongside securing a fair return for investment for licence 
fee payers, the BBC must also continue to pursue commercial arrangements that properly 
recognise the IP rights of performers in the next Charter period.  
 
Commercial operations such as BBC Worldwide must continue to ensure that they can deliver 
real value to the BBC, licence fee payers and content creators.  Rightly the BBC has narrowed its 
commercial arm and is now focussed on marketing BBC content. In general BBC output should 
not be driven by the consideration of its retail value in international markets however BBCW 
should be empowered to concentrate on enabling UK content to be showcased as widely as 
possible, using new technology and platforms where applicable. 
 
BBC Worldwide is an important source of revenue which is re-invested in BBC production. This 
helps to keep the Licence Fee as low as possible. It exists to maximise profits for the BBC, but 
operates under the rules and principles outlined in BBC’s Charter and Agreement. This 
framework is important as it means that BBCW is independent of Government, but supports the 
BBC’s public service mission and is accountable to licence fee payers. 
 
In 2013/14 alone BBCW returned £174m to the BBC through investment in BBC commissioned 
content and dividends. Independent producers and rightsholders also benefit greatly - in 
2013/14 alone they received £116m in upfront rights investment, profit share and royalties from 
BBCW.  
 
It is difficult to understand what merit there is in undertaking a debate about the ownership of 
BBCW at a time when further cuts to BBC funding are likely to occur. There should be no 
privatisation of any part of the BBC in the coming Charter period and the BBC should instead be 
free to explore how it can maintain and expand investment in content via all income derived 
from commercial activities into programme-making. 
 
15. How should the current model of governance and regulation for the BBC be reformed? 
 
There appears to be widespread support among parliamentarians and media commentators for 
Option 3 outlined in the Green Paper. This would entail abolishing the BBC Trust and 
empowering Ofcom to regulate the BBC. While elements of this option are attractive – Ofcom is 
an established and experienced regulator in the media sector and its new Chief Executive has 
indicated that Ofcom would be willing to exercise some of the regulatory functions of the BBC 
going forward - there are also a number of problems with this approach. 
 
Ofcom is currently firmly rooted in the commercial sector and would have to undergo significant 
reform to undertake responsibility for the BBC. Under the Ofcom model there also may not be 
representation for important groups whose views must be taken into account – specifically 
representatives of the workforce and licence fee payers. The BBC Trust is currently empowered 
to represent licence fee payers but has had varying success in doing so. In many cases it has 
endorsed decisions made by the Executive and it is unclear how much bearing public views have 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



had on their decisions. Whoever regulates the BBC in the future must represent the views of 
licence fee payers much more robustly and should take a more active approach to issues such as 
positive employment relations, equality and diversity.  
 
16. How should Public Value Tests and Service Licences be reformed and who should have 

responsibility for making these decisions? 
 
Equity has been supportive of Public Value Tests and Service Licence reviews and has made 
submissions to relevant consultation exercises relating to both processes conducted by the BBC 
Trust. These consultations provide a channel for Equity and the public to express concerns and 
give feedback, most recently about the future of BBC Three and the operation of the BBC’s radio 
stations. Consultation of this nature should continue into the future however consideration 
should be given as to how licence fee payers and the general public can more widely contribute 
their views. 
 
17. How could the BBC improve engagement with licence fee payers and the industry, 

including through research, transparency and complaints handling? 
 
We agree that Audience Councils could also be given more prominence, either by the BBC or by 
the BBC Trust. Given the need to address the lower levels of satisfaction of certain BBC audience 
groups including those living in Scotland and Northern Ireland and certain ethnic groups, the 
structure of Audience Councils could be given more visibility and could be given a more robust 
remit or focus, for example in terms of representing underserved audiences and BAME, LGBT, 
women and disabled audiences. 
 
It is regrettable that in many cases BBC senior management pay levels continue to appear to 
reflect patterns elsewhere in the economy, namely a growing gap between a small number of 
highly paid executives, whose rewards have grown year on year irrespective of performance, 
and the rest of the workforce who have seen greater insecurity and lower rewards. Equity has a 
constructive working relationship with the BBC however we will continue to seek to achieve 
improvements to the pay, terms and conditions of our members.  
 
Creative workers and performers are central to the sustainability and strength of the UK’s 
content production sector including the BBC’s output however, as they are mostly freelancers 
and self employed workers, they do not enjoy the same security or pay levels of directly 
employed workers. If the BBC is to continue to attract the best talent for its productions it must 
retain and improve terms and conditions and pay levels agreed with Equity and other trade 
unions for all performers. The diversity of the BBC’s workforce also needs to be vastly improved 
– particularly at senior levels and especially in terms of ethnicity, disability and gender. 
 
 
18. How should the relationship between Parliament, Government, Ofcom, the National Audit 

Office and the BBC work? What accountability structures and expectations, including 
financial transparency and spending controls, should apply? 

 
Equity is in favour of including a new legal obligation in the Royal Charter for Government to 
consult either directly with the public or via any future regulator of the BBC and to seek 
Parliamentary approval for any changes to the BBC’s funding. The lack of transparency 

Tudalen y pecyn 21



surrounding the last two licence fee settlements are a matter of considerable concern for 
licence fee payers and the thousands of people who work at or for the BBC, as well as the 
industry, and the process for such agreements should be made more transparent and 
accountable as an urgent priority. 
 
It is imperative in the next Charter period that specific decisions about the BBC’s services or 
content should not be a matter for Government. These decisions should be taken by the BBC, in 
accordance with the parameters set out by its regulator and in concert with the appropriate 
consultation mechanisms with licence fee payers. The independence of the BBC and any new 
regulatory body established under Charter Renewal should also be carefully protected. 
 
19. Should the existing approach of a 10 year Royal Charter and Framework Agreement 

continue? 
 
The BBC Trust has suggested that in future it is worth exploring a longer Charter period of 11 
years. This is to prevent undue political pressure being brought to bear on the BBC as a result of 
the changes to fixed term parliaments. Given that the cycle of 5 year parliaments will continue 
to coincide with Charter Renewal under the existing 10 year model Equity believes that this is a 
sensible suggestion. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 22



4 Tachwedd  2015 – Papurau i’w nodi 

Rhif 
papur:

Mater Oddi wrth Cam gweithredu

Papurau cyhoeddus i’w nodi 
2 Ymchwiliad 

Etifeddiaeth
Dirprwy Weinidog 
Diwylliant, 
Chwaraeon a 
Thwristiaeth

Gwybodaeth ychwanegol yn dilyn y 
cyfarfod ar 16 Medi 2015

3 Ymchwiliad 
Etifeddiaeth

Dame Rosemary 
Butler AC,
Llywydd

Gohebiaeth i’r Cadeirydd yn darparu 
gwybodaeth am adroddiad etifeddiaeth y 
Pwyllgor Busnes.

4 Ymchwiliad 
Etifeddiaeth

Gweinidog 
Gwasanaethau 
Cyhoeddus

Gwybodaeth ychwanegol yn dilyn y 
cyfarfod ar 24 Medi 2015

5 Ymchwiliad 
Etifeddiaeth

Gweinidog Cyllid a 
Busnes y 
Llywodraeth

Gwybodaeth ychwanegol yn dilyn y 
cyfarfod ar 24 Medi 2015

6 Ymchwiliad 
Etifeddiaeth

Prif Weinidog Gwybodaeth ychwanegol yn dilyn y 
cyfarfod ar 24 Medi 2015

7 Ymchwiliad 
Etifeddiaeth

Gweinidog 
Cymunedau a 
Threchu Tlodi

Gwybodaeth ychwanegol yn dilyn y 
cyfarfod ar 24 Medi 2015

8 Diwygio 
Llywodraeth Leol 

Gweinidog 
Gwasanaethau 
Cyhoeddus

Gohebiaeth i’r Cadeirydd yn darparu 
gwybodaeth ar ddigwyddiad sy’n cael ei 
gyd-gynnal gan Lywodraeth Cymru a’r 
Gymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru – Yr 
heriau a’r cyfleoedd wrth gyflenwi   
wasanaethau lleol yng Nghymru.

Tudalen y pecyn 23

Eitem 4



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 2 / Paper 2 

Tudalen y pecyn 24



Briefing 

Levering funding for the Arts:  

a note on European approaches 

 

1. Introduction 
 

The current period of economic austerity, and the ongoing pressure on public 

funding, is focusing attention on alternative methods of funding arts and cultural 

activity.  One response is to encourage grant-aided organisations to reduce their 

dependency on public support, either by increasing earned income or 

developing additional sources of income.  This mixed funding model, if it can be 

achieved, is generally felt to offer a better prospect of financial sustainability and 

resilience.    

 

This briefing note focuses on the primary tools adopted across Europe to 

encourage and incentivise private investment in arts and culture.   

 

The information set out in this note has been informed by discussion between 

the Arts Council of Wales and colleague members of the European chapter of 

IFACCA (the International Federation of Arts Councils and Cultural Agencies).  It 

also draws on data and information contained in Encouraging Private Investment 

in Cultural Sector (European Commission 2011). 

 

Our European peers confirm that ongoing financial pressures are obliging most 

countries to experiment with different mixes of public/private support.  However, 

the financial context is reported as being “challenging” and the results of this 

experimentation “mixed”. 

 

Two sources of funding in particular – sponsorship and trusts/foundations – are 

reported as being under increasing stress.   In the 1980s and 1990s levels of 

business support in European countries were generally on the rise.  Now, 

however, it is diminishing.  Private foundations in Europe have also tended to cut 

grant-giving, albeit on a temporary basis, as they nurse their capital during an 

era of low interest rates.   

 

This has tended to focus attention on the incentives (usually around taxation) 

that governments can enact to stimulate individual and corporate investment.  

This is explored in more detail below. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 25



2. Defining terms 
 

For the purposes of this note, “private investment” refers to the investing in, 

giving to or spending on culture undertaken by individuals, businesses or non-

public organisations. 

 

It should be noted that investing, giving and spending are driven by different 

motives.  Investing is driven by the principle of gain measured in terms of profit 

or return on investment.  Giving is prompted by different motives, usually driven 

by the principles of individual or corporate social responsibility.   

 

Public support  

This includes direct and indirect support: 

 Direct support is the support to arts and culture made by government and/or 

other public bodies, such as the Arts Council.   This support includes grants, 

subsidies, awards etc. 

 

 Indirect support consists of measures, adopted by governmental and/or 

public institutions for the benefit of the arts, that usually involve legal 

instruments or interventions.  Indirect measures usually revolve around the 

treatment of taxation – the income that local and national governments 

forego because of tax reductions and/or exemptions granted to arts and 

cultural institutions. 

 

Private support  

Private support includes business support, individual giving and support from 

foundations and trusts:  

 Business support usually refers to direct financial investment designed to 

achieve specific outcomes.  These can vary from involvement in public-private 

partnerships, sponsorship, donations or the commissioning/purchasing of 

works of art 

 

 Individual giving includes all transactions made by individuals with the 

intention of donating or contributing arts activity.  (This is different to 

purchasing tickets for attendance which would generally be described as 

earned income.)  

 

 Foundations and trusts are predominantly intermediary bodies, charitably 

constituted and usually founded by law.  They nearly always supported by 

Tudalen y pecyn 26



private endowment and serve specific purposes defined in the body’s 

founding objectives. 

 

Earned income  

This would include all individual spending for cultural purposes, such 

as entry fees to cultural institutions, the purchase of tickets or the buying of 

cultural objects.  

 

 

3. The political context 
 

There are a number of EU documents addressing cultural industries that refer to 

partnerships among the arts and business sectors.  The European Parliament 

Resolution on cultural industries in Europe (2007/2153(INI)) calls on: 

  

“the Council, the Commission and the Member States to take the action 

required, recommending mixed methods of funding and financial security, and 

promoting a regulatory and fiscal framework that favours cultural industries as 

well as creative communities, and more particularly by applying tax credits and 

reduced rates of VAT to all cultural products, including online works.”  

 

Business and arts cooperation is also referred to in the European Green Paper on 

Unlocking the potential of cultural and creative industries, COM(2010) 183, as well as 

in the European Council’s observations regarding the contribution of the cultural and 

creative sectors to the achievement of the Lisbon objectives. The latter pay special 

attention to promoting  

 

“contacts and cooperation between the creative sector and the business world 

in order to increase the awareness of the latter regarding the potential of the 

cultural and creative sector.” 

 

 

4. Encouraging private investment 
 

The principal means of encouraging private investment in the cultural sector area 

as follows: 

 

1. Tax policy.   An important advantage of tax policy is its neutrality as tax 

incentives do not generally relate to specific artistic content.  Instead, criteria 

tend to be general and are linked to types of beneficiaries.  It is therefore left 

Tudalen y pecyn 27



to individuals, corporate businesses and non-profit foundations to make their 

own cultural decisions.  

Tudalen y pecyn 28



Examples across Europe include tax reliefs, tax breaks, tax deductions, tax 

exemption, tax allowance and tax incentives etc and specifically branded 

schemes such as the transfer of art in lieu of payment of tax.   

 

Example: Throughout the 1990s Sweden had applied its standard VAT rate of 

25% to books.  Lowering the VAT on books in Sweden was intended to lower 

prices and increase sales, in order to promote readership, quality of books 

and diversity of content.  In 2002 a decision was reached to bring down the 

level of VAT on books to 6%. The VAT reduction was immediately reflected in 

lower prices and in the following year sales rose by 16%. 

 

2. Sponsorship.  Sponsorship is a feature of cultural investment in all European 

countries.  However, its scale is not consistently measured and it is difficult to 

provide accurate figures, although the general consensus is that this is static 

at best and reducing in many countries as companies move away from 

traditional sponsorship programmes top community based programmes 

based around corporate social responsibility.   

 

Sponsorship generally represents a small proportion of the incomes of most 

arts organisations.  It is also more prevalent in the metropolitan centres and 

in support of larger, higher profile arts organisations.  A small community 

based organisation in a rural area would generally struggle to achieve 

significant levels of corporate sponsorship  

 

Example: The Office for Cultural Sponsorship, established by the Greek state, 

encourages private sector sponsorship of the arts.  The value of the 

sponsorship is deductible from the taxable income of the ratepayer or the 

gross income of the business offering the sponsorship. Once a year, the 

Minister of Culture awards prizes for particularly enterprising examples of 

support.   

 

3. Public-private partnerships (PPP).  These are usually an agreement 

between a government and the private sector to provide public services or 

physical infrastructure.   Under these arrangements the public sector is 

relieved of the burden of managing large capital expenditures and transfers 

the risk of cost overruns to the private sector.  There are few examples of this 

in the arts. 

 

4. Levies.  This is a requirement to pay an additional amount on top of the 

identified cost of the cultural product.  Examples include booking fees, credit 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



card charges and charges levied for a specific purpose (such as general 

fundraising or capital refurbishment.    

Tudalen y pecyn 30



Levies can be voluntary and mandatory. 

 

Another variation of this approach would be initiatives such as % for Art that 

seek to identify a specified amount of the funding of a larger development to 

be available for public arts work.  % for Arts schemes were widely adopted by 

a number of local authorities in the 1990s and coincided with the launch of 

the National Lottery 

 

Example:  The Community Infrastructure Levy allows local authorities in 

England to raise funds towards infrastructure needed to support the 

development of their areas.  The Community Infrastructure Levy allows 

charging authorities to raise funds, usually through planning gain and 

developer contributions, towards the cost of infrastructure needed to support 

an area’s development.  The Planning Act (2008) defines cultural facilities as 

within the definition of relevant infrastructure.  

 

 

Example:  In the Netherlands, the integration of art in state buildings has 

been an element of government policy from the beginning of the nineteenth 

century.  The current percentage for art scheme stipulates that for the 

building, conversion or renovation of state buildings, depending on the total 

building sum, 0.5 to 2% of the budget must be spent on the visual arts.   As a 

result of the percentage scheme the Rijksgebouwendienst (Government 

Buildings Agency) is the biggest commissioner in the field of the visual arts in 

the Netherlands. More than 2,500 works of art have been realised in the last 

40 years in the context of this scheme.    

 

5. Percentage legislation.  This is a tax measure through which taxpayers may 

designate a certain percentage of their income tax to be allocated to a 

specific non-profit, non-governmental organisation).  Among EU Member 

States, percentage legislation systems exist in Eastern European countries, 

such as Hungary, Lithuania, Poland, Slovakia, Romania and Slovenia. 

 

Example:  In 2007, the Nonprofit Information and Training Centre (NIOK) 

Foundation conducted a research study evaluating percentage legislation in 

the five Eastern European countries identified above.  The study concluded 

that, in societies with no tradition of donation and no models for the 

population to follow in order to take part in philanthropy, application of 

percentage legislation can be an effective way to stimulate giving. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



6. Individual donations.  These are one-sided business transactions from 

which the donor expects no direct benefit. Donations can be made in cash or 

in kind.   A number of EU Member States have implemented measures to 

encourage individual donations.  Several countries offer deductions for 

individual donors, following examples from the US and countries such as 

Italy, Greece and Germany who have special incentives around inheritance 

tax. 

 

7. Corporate donations.  Gifts in cash or in kind, made by companies and 

other legal subjects to cultural organisations or individual artists.   Measures 

supporting corporate donations most often take the form of tax incentives 

for donors.  

 

8. Transfers in lieu of tax.  Many countries allow taxpayers to transfer their 

property, including works of art, in lieu of payment of different taxes, such as 

estate tax.  Such a system effectively acts as a ‘tax credit’ rather than a ‘tax 

deduction’ 

 

Example:  In December 2014 artworks worth around £45 million were left to the 

nation in lieu of tax.  They included an early work by Vincent Van Gogh, a collection 

of political posters and more than 40 sketches and paintings from the personal 

collection of the late Lucian Freud.  Van Gogh's oil painting Head of a Peasant 

Woman dates to around 1884 and has been given to the National Gallery.   The 

collection of 99 political posters, which mostly date from the first quarter of the 20th 

century, were collected by Bristol University librarian Geoffrey Ford and have been 

given to the university. 

 

9. Matching funds/grant.   These usually reflect a requirement or a condition 

that stipulates that private donation in money or in kind has to be matched 

by a certain amount proportional to the value of the donation from a third 

party (for example, state or local community).   One of the advantages of this 

arrangement is that private investors are reassured about the value of this 

investment by seeing the imprimatur of government support.  

 

10. Lotteries.  Lottery schemes exist across Europe.  As in the UK, the model 

usually involves the collection of earmarked taxes which are then reallocated 

for designated or specific cultural purposes. 

 

11. Voucher schemes.  In general, a voucher is a credit of a certain monetary 

value that can be used only for a specified purpose.  In the culture sector, 

Tudalen y pecyn 32



vouchers are used as a manner of stimulating demand for cultural products 

or allowing discounted access to specified events.   

Tudalen y pecyn 33



In Europe, the most well-known voucher system is in Slovakia although 

similar schemes have been tried in Germany. 

 

Example:  An initiative organised by the Ministry of Culture of the Slovak 

Republic in 2006 saw the issuing of cultural vouchers (each with the value of 

SKK 200, approximately EUR 6) to students and teachers of primary and 

secondary schools free of charge.  The vouchers could be used for visiting a 

cultural event or for access to cultural heritage institutions (museums, 

galleries, libraries) in the organisations that were registered with this scheme.  

The Ministry issued a total of 900,000 thousand vouchers for students and 

100,000 thousand for teachers.  The Ministry then reimbursed individual 

cultural organisations the amount of money that they received in the form of 

vouchers.  Some 527,000 vouchers were used, with a total value of SKK 105.5 

million (approx. EUR 3.1 million). 

 

12. Banking schemes.  These direct bank support to the cultural sector.  Banking 

schemes can include loan schemes that give a preferable interest rate to 

cultural activities, or any other instruments that favour cultural activities.  

There are several examples in Wales of the Charity Bank adopting this 

approach 

 

13. Trusts and Foundations.  Usually non-profit organisations that either donate 

funds and support to other organisations, or provide the source of funding 

for their own charitable purposes.   Most foundations in Europe support 

social issues, while culture is the focus of activity of a smaller and more 

limited number of foundations. 

 

Example: Malta has a vibrant trusts and foundations sector supporting artists 

and the arts (for example, Malta Arts Fund, Malta Film Fund, Extended Public 

Service Obligations, Francis Ebejer Prize, Investment Funds, Kreattiv, Malta 

Arts Scholarships, Malta Enterprise supporting the arts and creative industries, 

and the National Book Prize). 

 

14. Venture philanthropy.  This emerging form of private investment applies 

venture capital investment principles, such as long-term investment and 

capacity-building support, to the voluntary and community sectors.   It is 

often described as a form of ‘engaged’ philanthropy. 

 

15. Crowd funding and online fundraising.  These are new mechanisms in the 

digital arena designed to encourage private investment in culture.  The UK-

Tudalen y pecyn 34



based Crowdfunding Centre estimated that in the month of March 2014, 442 

campaigns were launched globally on a daily basis 

 

Crowd funding usually operates in one of three ways of offering a ‘return’ to 

the investor:  through the offer of a reward, by taking an equity stake, by 

financing debt.  

 

Example:  In Sweden, Crowdculture works like a regular crowd funding 

platform except for the fact that artists and cultural workers can also seek 

financing from public funds through the system.   The money pool is both 

private money (members) and public money (part of the government cultural 

budget).    It is the members' voices that control where the public money 

goes.   Once a member votes on a project, it corresponds with money from 

the public pot.   Success depends on sufficient numbers of members being 

persuaded top support a project.   

 

16. Own organisation earned income.  Arts and business organisations can 

often provide a range of income-earning services through their training 

activities, friends schemes, awareness raising activities and linkage between 

the arts and business sectors.  The establishment of specialised agencies, 

such as Arts & Business Wales, encourage engagement between business 

companies and the arts sector, enhancing private involvement in the cultural 

sector.  

 

 

3. Observations and conclusions 
 

Consultations with European colleagues have elicited the following observations: 

 indirect public support measures via tax incentives in Europe are well 

developed, but the take-up of these by citizens, cultural organisations and 

businesses varies across different countries.  There is a consensus that more 

needs to be done to promote a culture of giving  

 

 the temptation to over-emphasise the potential of private support to serve as 

an alternative to public support is controversial.  Private funds in many 

European countries are decreasing rapidly in the period of crisis.  There is 

also a growing body of opinion to suggest that there is a positive correlation 

between the roles of the state and private investment in culture.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



 public intervention in terms of matching funds or fiscal encouragement 

builds trust in the importance of culture for sponsors and donors who want 

to capitalise in an already successful and important sector. 

 

 Crowdfunding tends to be viewed with a mix of enthusiasm and suspicion.  It 

is undoubtedly providing new sources of income and can be a practical way 

of identifying new customers/supporters.  However, repeated campaigns risk 

donor exhaustion and are rarely able to provide for an organisation’s core 

costs.  There can also be a public fear of abuse over what is an unregulated 

investment instrument 

 

 more could be done to set up supportive and financially sustainable Friends 

scheme.  Too many Friends scheme offer more in benefits and discounts than 

they receive in cash  

 

 the professionalism of fundraising is not adequately developed.  While the 

for professionalism is evident, the critical decision to employ fundraisers is 

very difficult to make when there are often not enough funds to properly pay 

for core cultural or artistic activities, or to appoint external fund-raising 

consultants. Therefore, fundraising is not sufficiently included as an integral 

part of the operational structure in most cultural organisations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



Arts Council of Wales 

October 2015 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 3 / Paper 3

7 October 2015

Dear Chair,

The Business Committee has decided to produce a legacy report and is gathering 
views on the work it has carried out over the past five years including the 
structures it has put in place, the procedural reforms it has introduced, and its 
ways of working. The final report will help inform the successor committee in 
making a number of key decisions at the start of the Fifth Assembly.

The Committee is consulting on the questions set out in Annex A to this letter. 
You will be aware that I have already established a Chairs Forum to consider many 
of these issues from a committee perspective, and to report to me by the end of 
the year. That Chairs Forum’s report will feed into the Business Committee’s own 
legacy report, but I wanted to give your committee the additional opportunity 
through this consultation of raising any specific issues related to your 
committee’s work that you may want to bring to the Business Committee’s 
attention.

The Committee is also consulting with external stakeholders, with a closing date 
for submissions of 13 November 2015. We will be meeting in early December to 
consider the evidence gathered, and so ask that you make any submissions in 
time for them to be considered at that meeting.

If you wish to submit evidence, please send an electronic copy of your submission 
to SeneddBusiness@Assembly.Wales. Alternatively, you can write to: Committee 
Clerk, Business Committee, National Assembly for Wales, Cardiff Bay, CF99 1NA.  

Tudalen y pecyn 38

mailto:SeneddBusiness@assembly.wales


Disclosure of information
You can find further details about how we will use your information at 
www.assembly.wales/help/privacy/help-inquiry-privacy.htm. Please ensure that 
you have considered these details carefully before submitting information to the 
Committee. A hard copy of this policy can be requested by contacting the Clerk.

Dame Rosemary Butler AM

Chair, Business Committee

Tudalen y pecyn 39

http://www.assembly.wales/help/privacy/help-inquiry-privacy.htm


Annex A

The terms of reference for the inquiry:

During the current Assembly, the Presiding Officer and Business Committee have 
introduced a number of procedural reforms, including changing the deadlines for 
tabling Oral Assembly Questions, introducing regular Individual Member Debates, 
and leaders’ and spokespeople’s questions.

o What impact have these changes had in enabling Members to 
represent their constituents and hold the government to 
account?

For the first time, the committee structure of the Fourth Assembly, combined 
policy and legislative scrutiny within the same committees.

o How effective has this approach been and how have committees 
achieved a balance between their policy, financial and 
legislative scrutiny?

o What changes could be made to committee size and structure 
in future to make them more effective?

The Business Committee is responsible for setting the Assembly timetable, 
including scheduling committee meetings. Currently, Plenary meets on Tuesday 
and Wednesday afternoons, with committees meeting mostly on Tuesday and 
Wednesday mornings, and Thursdays. 

o Does the current Assembly timetable, including the structure of 
the working week and committee/Plenary slots provide the 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



correct balance in terms of the use of the Assembly’s time, 
allowing it to effectively perform its functions of making laws, 
representing the people of Wales, and holding the government 
to account?

The Business Committee is responsible for establishing timetables for committees 
to consider Bills, and LCMs, in line with Standing Orders.

o Do the current processes for timetabling legislation – including 
Bills and LCMs – allow for proper scrutiny and engagement by 
Members and stakeholders? Could it be made more effective? 

Unlike its equivalents in many other legislatures, the Assembly’s Business 
Committee combines the role of scheduling Assembly business with that of a 
‘procedures committee’ responsible for considering and proposing changes to the 
Assembly’s Standing Orders and procedures.

o What are the advantages and disadvantages of this dual role, 
and is there a case for reviewing it?

Tudalen y pecyn 41



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 4 / Paper 4 

Tudalen y pecyn 42



Tudalen y pecyn 43



Tudalen y pecyn 44



Tudalen y pecyn 45



Tudalen y pecyn 46



Tudalen y pecyn 47



Tudalen y pecyn 48



Tudalen y pecyn 49



Tudalen y pecyn 50



Tudalen y pecyn 51



Tudalen y pecyn 52



Tudalen y pecyn 53



Tudalen y pecyn 54



Tudalen y pecyn 55



Tudalen y pecyn 56



Tudalen y pecyn 57



Tudalen y pecyn 58



Tudalen y pecyn 59



Tudalen y pecyn 60



Tudalen y pecyn 61



Tudalen y pecyn 62



Tudalen y pecyn 63



Tudalen y pecyn 64



Tudalen y pecyn 65



Tudalen y pecyn 66



Tudalen y pecyn 67



Tudalen y pecyn 68



Tudalen y pecyn 69



 

Jane Hutt AC / AM 
Y Gweinidog Cyllid a Busnes y Llywodraeth 
Minister for Finance and Government Business 
 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

English Enquiry Line  0300 0603300 
Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0300 0604400 

                Correspondence.Jane.Hutt@wales.gsi.gov.uk 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 

in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 

Ein cyf/Our ref  
 

Christine Chapman AC 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru 

Bae Caerdydd 
CF99 1NA 

22 Hydref 2015 
Annwyl Christine, 
 

Diolch ichi am eich llythyr dyddiedig 8 Hydref 2015 ynghylch y gwerthusiad a wnaed yn sgil 
cynnwys anfantais economaidd-gymdeithasol wrth asesu effaith y gyllideb ddrafft ar 
gydraddoldeb. 
 
Fel Llywodraeth rydym wedi ymrwymo i asesu effaith ein penderfyniadau gwariant. Byddwn 
yn datblygu a gwella ein dull yn barhaus o flwyddyn i flwyddyn. Ein nod yw gwella manylder  
y dadansoddiad a ddarperir ym mhob Asesiad Effaith Integredig Strategol y byddwn yn ei 
gyhoeddi.   
 
Yn unol â'r ymrwymiad hwn rydym wedi gofyn i Sefydliad Polisi Cyhoeddus Cymru edrych 
ar sut y gallai Llywodraeth Cymru wella ei defnydd o asesiadau effaith. Bydd y gwaith hwn 
yn edrych ar yr arferion cyfredol yng Nghymru, ac yn ystyried arferion gorau o bedwar ban 
byd i roi cyngor ar sut y gallai'r broses asesu effaith gael ei gwella.  
 
Ar ôl cwblhau'r gwaith hwn ddechrau’r flwyddyn nesaf, byddwn yn ystyried ei ganlyniadau ar 
gyfer llunio ein dull asesu effaith yn y dyfodol.  
 
Yn gywir, 
 
 

 
 
Jane Hutt AC / AM 
Y Gweinidog Cyllid a Busnes y Llywodraeth 
Minister for Finance and Government Business 

Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 5 / Paper 5 

Tudalen y pecyn 70



Y Gwir Anrh/Rt Hon Carwyn Jones AC/AM 
 Prif Weinidog Cymru/First Minister of Wales 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300 
Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400 

Ffacs * Fax 029 2082 1879 
YP.PrifWeinidog@cymru.gsi.gov.uk • 

ps.firstminister@wales.gsi.gov.uk   

 

 
 
 
 
Christine Chapman AC   
Cadeirydd: Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol   
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru   
Tŷ Hywel 
Bae Caerdydd   
Caerdydd   
CF99 1NA 

             
      22 Hydref 2015 

 
 
Annwyl Christine  
 
Ryw’n ysgrifennu atoch mewn ymateb i’ch gohebiaeth dyddiedig 8 Hydref, fel Cadeirydd y 
Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol, yn holi am ragor o wybodaeth 
ynglŷn â’n gwaith mewn perthynas â’r Gymraeg. 
 
Mae’ch gohebiaeth yn codi nifer o faterion, ac rwyf wedi darparu gwybodaeth yn nhrefn y 
penawdau sydd yn eich llythyr. 
 
Bwrw Mlaen 

 

Un o’r amodau grant ar gyfer ariannu’r Canolfannau Cymraeg yw bod pob un ohonynt yn 

darparu adroddiad i Lywodraeth Cymru yn ddim hwyrach na 18 mis ar ôl derbyn y cyllid.  

Bydd yr adroddiadau hyn yn cynnwys: 

 

 nodau ac amcanion y prosiect; 

 sut bydd y nodau a’r amcanion yn cyfrannu at nodau a meysydd strategol strategaeth 

Iaith fyw: iaith byw a pholisi Bwrw Mlaen; 

 tystiolaeth o’r hyn a gyflawnwyd (gan gynnwys tystiolaeth a gasglwyd gan 

randdeiliaid ac ati, lle bo’n berthnasol); 

 hunanasesiad o effaith y prosiect a pha mor effeithiol ydyw;  

 y gwersi a ddysgwyd wrth ymgymryd â’r prosiect. 
 
Rydym yn disgwyl i’r adroddiadau cyntaf ddod i law ym mis Awst 2016. Ar ôl hynny, bydd 
swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru yn gweithio gyda phob canolfan i glustnodi arferion da, 
meysydd i’w datblygu, ac i ddiweddaru’r cynllun busnes yn unol â hynny.  
 
Mae swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru hefyd mewn cyswllt rheolaidd â’r Canolfannau, ac yn 
cyfarfod â’u cynrychiolwyr yn rheolaidd. Mae’r Canolfannau a ariennir gan y cynllun hefyd 
yn cyfarfod ddwywaith y flwyddyn, a bydd y trefniant hwn yn parhau i’r dyfodol.  
 

Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 6 / Paper 6 

Tudalen y pecyn 71



 

 

Mae’r Canolfannau yn elfen bwysig o’n dull o gyflawni polisi Bwrw Mlaen a datblygu’r 
Gymraeg yn y gymuned. Bydd disgwyl i bob un o’n partneriaid sy’n derbyn cyllid refeniw, fel 
y Mentrau Iaith, yr Urdd ac eraill gydweithio’n agos â’r Canolfannau, a byddant yn rhoi 
gwybod inni am unrhyw ddatblygiadau drwy gyfrwng eu hadroddiadau chwarterol.  
 
Yn achos y Canolfannau Cymraeg a’r Mentrau Iaith, y bwriad yw iddynt fod yn rhan annatod 
o’r cymunedau maen nhw’n eu gwasanaethu – mae hyn yn golygu bod eu 
gweithgareddau’n amrywio o ardal i ardal yn unol â phroffil demograffig y siaradwyr 
Cymraeg a phroffil yr economi leol.  
 
Yn achos addysg, mae gan awdurdodau lleol ddyletswydd i gynllunio sut byddant yn 
darparu ar gyfer y Gymraeg yn y system addysg, gan deilwra’r ddarpariaeth honno’n unol 
ag anghenion lleol, ac mae gan Weinidogion Cymru rôl bwysig mewn perthynas â 
Chynlluniau Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg awdurdodau lleol. 
 
At hynny, er mwyn gwella’n hymwybyddiaeth o amgylchiadau lleol, fe wnaethom gomisiynu 
astudiaeth ymchwil ynglŷn â Defnyddio’r Gymraeg yn y Gymuned, a gyhoeddwyd ar 7 
Hydref.  Mae’r gwaith hwn yn cefnogi gwaith Llywodraeth Cymru wrth iddi fireinio a datblygu 
ei dulliau gweithredu i gyrraedd yr amcanion a amlinellir yn Iaith fyw, iaith byw a Bwrw 
Mlaen.   
 
Yr weledigaeth yw i’r Gymraeg fod yn rhan o brofiadau unigolion o’r crud, gyda chyfleoedd i 
ddefnyddio’r iaith drwy’r ddarpariaeth Blynyddoedd Cynnar, y system ysgolion, yn y 
gymuned ac mewn gweithgareddau hamdden, drwy addysg bellach ac addysg uwch a 
dysgu oedolion. Ein nod yw sicrhau bod yr weledigaeth hon yn bwydo i mewn i bob agwedd 
ar ein gwaith ni a gwaith ein partneriaid.   
 
Rydym wedi datblygu ein dulliau o lywio a chydlynu gwaith ein partneriaid.  Mae brand Y 
Llais, er enghraifft, yn creu llais cryf, unedig ac mae’n gyfle i sicrhau bod pobl yn gallu gweld 
dilyniant yng ngwaith Llywodraeth Cymru a’r holl bartneriaid a ariennir ganddi wrth 
hyrwyddo’r Gymraeg. Mae hefyd yn dangos ein bod yn rhannu’r un weledigaeth, ac yn 
cydweithio er mwyn annog cynnydd yn nefnydd yr Iaith.  
 
Mae gwefan Cymraeg - Byw Dysgu Mwynhau yn borthol sy’n cyfeirio pobl at bob math o 
wybodaeth am y Gymraeg, ac mae’n cynnwys cyfraniadau gan ein partneriaid ym mhob 
rhan o Gymru. Law yn llaw â’r wefan rydym wedi creu system CRM i gynnal perthynas â 
chwsmeriaid, gan alluogi unigolion i gofrestru i dderbyn gwybodaeth sydd wedi’i theilwra am 
ddigwyddiadau a gwasanaethau Cymraeg. 
 
Safonau’r Gymraeg 
  
O ran pam na fydd y rheoliadau ar gyfer y trydydd cylch yn cael eu gwneud cyn mis Mai 
2016 – yn unol â Mesur y Gymraeg rhaid i Weinidogion Cymru rhoi sylw dyladwy i bob un o 
gasgliadau Comisiynydd y Gymraeg yn dilyn ymchwiliad safonau. Mae hon yn broses sy’n 
cymryd amser, gan fod angen ystyried casgliadau’r Comisiynydd ochr yn ochr â thystiolaeth 
y cyrff eu hunain, yn ogystal â dymuniad polisi y Llywodraeth. Mae’n bwysig ein bod yn 
paratoi rheoliadau addas.  
 
Byddai’n rhaid paratoi rheoliadau erbyn Chwefror er mwyn cwblhau’r broses o greu’r 
ddeddfwriaeth cyn etholiad 2016. O ystyried bod dros 60 o gyrff o sectorau gwahanol yn 
nhrydydd ymchwiliad safonau’r Comisiynydd, nid yw hynny’n caniatáu digon o amser i roi 
sylw dyladwy i gasgliadau’r Comisiynydd a pharatoi rheoliadau addas. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 72



 

 

O droi at y cyrff yn nhrydydd ymchwiliad y Comisiynydd, a’r amserlen ar gyfer gosod 
safonau ar sefydliadau fel cyflenwyr nwy a thrydan, darparwyr gwasanaethau telathrebu, a 
darparwyr gwasanaethau rheilffordd – er mwyn i ni allu llunio safonau, mae angen i’r 
Comisiynydd fod wedi cynnal ymchwiliad i’r cwmnïau dan sylw a darparu adroddiad i 
Weinidogion Cymru.  Mater o broses ac o wneud pethau’n gywir yw hyn. Rwy’n ffyddiog y 
byddwn yn gosod safonau pellach ar y sectorau hyn wrth i’r broses fynd yn ei blaen, ac 
rwy’n disgwyl ymlaen at weld hynny’n digwydd.  
 

Ac o safbwynt cymhwysedd y Cynulliad i ddeddfu mewn perthynas â sefydliadau’r sector 

preifat, rwy’n cydnabod bod Atodlenni 7 ac 8 Mesur y Gymraeg yn caniatáu i rai cyrff o’r 

sector preifat ddod o dan y drefn safonau. Ymhlith eraill, mae’r rhain yn cynnwys cwmnïau 

sy’n darparu ynni, dŵr, gwasanaethau post, telathrebu, a thrafnidiaeth. Mae’r rhain yn 

gwmnïau sy’n darparu gwasanaethau pwysig i’r cyhoedd ac rwy’n disgwyl ymlaen iddynt 

ddod o dan y drefn safonau i wella’r gwasanaethau y gall siaradwyr Cymraeg eu cael yn eu 

bywydau pob dydd. 

 
Nid yw’r sector preifat yn ei gyfanrwydd yn dod o dan y drefn safonau fel mae’r Mesur yn 
sefyll ar hyn o bryd. Er enghraifft, nid yw archfarchnadoedd a gwasanaethau ariannol yn 
dod o dan y Mesur ar hyn o bryd. 
 
Cynllunio  
 

Mae’r Prif Weinidog a’r Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol ill dau wedi derbyn y ffaith y bydd angen 
diweddaru Polisi Cynllunio Cymru a TAN 20 ar ôl i Ddeddf Cynllunio (Cymru) gael 
Cydsyniad Brenhinol. Ni ddaw’r darpariaethau yn adran 31 o’r Ddeddf i rym tan yn gynnar 
yn 2016, a bydd gwaith i ddiweddaru fframwaith y polisi cynllunio yn dilyn yn fuan wedi 
hynny. 
 
Prif fwriad TAN 20 yw helpu Awdurdodau Cynllunio Lleol i baratoi eu Cynlluniau Datblygu 
Lleol, a chyfrifoldeb pob Awdurdod Cynllunio Lleol yw penderfynu arwyddocâd y Gymraeg 
ar gyfer eu Cynlluniau Datblygu ar sail y dystiolaeth. Bydd effaith y TAN yn dibynnu felly ar 
ba gam y mae’r Awdurdod Cynllunio Lleol wedi ei gyrraedd, ac ar arwyddocâd y Gymraeg 
yn lleol. Er enghraifft, fe wyddom fod y Gymraeg wedi ei hystyried yn ddiweddar gan Gyngor 
Caerdydd, sy’n paratoi ei Gynllun Datblygu Lleol ar hyn o bryd. 
 
Mae disgwyl i Awdurdodau Cynllunio Lleol gyhoeddi Adroddiad Monitro Blynyddol ar 
berfformiad eu Cynllun Datblygu Lleol. Pan fydd Cynllun Datblygu Lleol wedi clustnodi 
polisïau ar gyfer cefnogi’r Gymraeg, dylid eu hadlewyrchu yn yr Adroddiad Monitro. Mae’r 
newidiadau yn adran 31 o’r Ddeddf yn atgyfnerthu’r gofynion blaenorol yn y polisi cynllunio 
y gall ystyriaethau o ran y Gymraeg fod yn rhan o’r broses benderfynu.  Dylai Awdurdodau 
Cynllunio Lleol eisoes fod yn gyfarwydd â’r darpariaethau hyn, a byddwn yn parhau i’w 
cefnogi drwy’r broses o ddatblygu ac adolygu’r Cynlluniau Datblygu Lleol.  
 
Addysg 

 
Adolygiad yr Athro Davies 
 
Cyhoeddwyd datganiad ysgrifenedig ar Gymraeg ail iaith yn y cwricwlwm newydd ar 15 
Hydref.  
 
Bydd Maes Dysgu a Phrofiad Ieithoedd, Llythrennedd a Chyfathrebu yn cael ei gyflwyno yn 
y cwricwlwm newydd a fydd yn cynnwys pwyntiau cyfeirio ar gyfer cynnydd a deilliannau 
cyflawniad clir ar gyfer datblygu sgiliau Cymraeg dros amser.  

Tudalen y pecyn 73



 

 

 
Bydd y gwaith ar ddatblygu’r cwricwlwm newydd yn cael ei wneud gan ein rhwydwaith o 
ysgolion arloesi, gyda chymorth arbenigwyr o Gymru ac arbenigwyr rhyngwladol. 
 
Ar 22 Hydref cyhoeddwyd Cwricwlwm i Gymru: Cwricwlwm am Oes, y cynllun lefel uchel 
sy’n nodi sut bydd argymhellion Dyfodol Llwyddiannus yn cael eu gweithredu, ac mae’n 
cynnwys y prif gerrig milltir. Ein huchelgais yw dylunio, datblygu a gwireddu ein cwricwlwm o 
fewn chwe blynedd fel ei fod ar gael i’w addysgu erbyn Medi 2021. 
 
Dechrau’n Deg 
 
Mae darpariaeth Gymraeg yn rhan annatod o Dechrau’n Deg, ac rydym bob amser wedi ei 
gwneud yn ofynnol i awdurdodau lleol ymateb i ddewis rhieni, ac i gynnig darpariaeth 
Gymraeg lle bo’i hangen. Nid yw Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gosod unrhyw dargedau penodol 
ar gyfer darparu gofal plant Dechrau’n Deg drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Er hynny, mae 
canllawiau strategol Dechrau’n Deg yn parhau i bwysleisio bod yn rhaid i awdurdodau lleol 
wneud trefniadau i fodloni dymuniadau rhieni sy’n dewis darpariaeth cyfrwng Cymraeg a / 
neu ddwyieithog. 
 
Yn 2014-15, sef y cyfnod diweddaraf y mae gennym ddata ar ei gyfer, roedd 9,393 o blant 
yn gymwys am ofal plant am y tro cyntaf, a gwnaed ceisiadau am ofal plant cyfrwng 
Cymraeg ar gyfer 998 o’r rhain mewn lleoliadau Dechrau’n Deg. Atebwyd y galw yn achos 
965 o’r ceisiadau hyn, sef 96% o’r ceisiadau. 
 
Mae’r ffigurau’n dangos bod tua 10% o’r plant oedd yn gymwys am ofal plant o dan 
Dechrau’n Deg wedi derbyn y gofal hwnnw drwy’r Gymraeg.   
 
Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol    
 
Nid yw cyllideb Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2016-17 wedi ei benderfynu hyd yn hyn. Bydd 
canlyniadau’r adolygiad o wariant yn cael eu cyhoeddi ar 25 Tachwedd, a disgwylir y bydd 
cyllideb ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru yn hysbys ar 8 Rhagfyr. Ni fydd modd inni gynnig 
unrhyw sylwadau ar gyllidebau tan hynny. 
 
I gloi, hoffwn i ddatgan fy mod i’n ddiolchgar i chi fel Pwyllgor am eich sylwadau ac yn 
gwerthfawrogi eich adborth adeiladol.    
 

Yn gywir   

       
CARWYN JONES 

Tudalen y pecyn 74



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 7 / Paper 7 

Tudalen y pecyn 75



Tudalen y pecyn 76



Tudalen y pecyn 77



Tudalen y pecyn 78



Tudalen y pecyn 79



Tudalen y pecyn 80



 

Leighton Andrews AC / AM 
Y Gweinidog Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus  
Minister for Public Services    
  

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 

Caerdydd • Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 

English Enquiry Line  0300 0603300 

Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0300 0604400 

                Correspondence.Leighton.Andrews@wales.gsi.gov.uk 
 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 

in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
Ein cyf : MA-P-LA-0087-15  
 

Christine Chapman AC 
Cadeirydd, Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru  
Bae Caerdydd  
CF99 1NA 

       
   30 Hydref 2015  

Annwyl Christine, 
 
Ar 19 Tachwedd, bydd Llywodraeth Cymru a Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru yn cyd-
gynnal digwyddiad gyda’r teitl ‘Yr heriau a’r cyfleoedd wrth gyflenwi gwasanaethau lleol yng 
Nghymru: seminar ar y cyd ar Gyllid Llywodraeth Leol Cymru’. Bydd y seminar yn 
canolbwyntio ar sut y gall Llywodraeth Leol yng Nghymru ymateb i bwysau ariannol trwy 
ailfeddwl am sut y caiff gwasanaethau eu cyflenwi a thrwy ddysgu wrth eraill.     
 
Bydd y rhaglen yn ystod y bore yn canolbwyntio ar yr heriau sydd i ddod i Lywodraeth Leol, 
a hefyd ar y sefyllfa economaidd ac ariannol a ragwelir ar gyfer gwasanaethau cyhoeddus.  
Mae rhaglen y prynhawn wedi ei chynllunio i annog trafodaethau cadarnhaol am wahanol 
ddulliau o gyflenwi gwasanaethau, a beth sydd wedi gweithio mewn mannau eraill. Bydd y 
siaradwyr yn cynnwys cynrychiolwyr o sefydliadau proffesiynol, mentrau cymunedol a 
Llywodraeth Leol, gan gynnwys Arweinydd Cyngor yn Lloegr a fydd yn rhannu profiadau 
diweddar o symud ymlaen gyda newidiadau radical i gyflenwi gwasanaethau.  
 
O ystyried y testun, rwy’n falch o wahodd aelodau’r pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a 
Llywodraeth Leol i’r seminar. Bydd yn cael ei chynnal yn Neuadd y Ddinas, Caerdydd, gan 
ddechrau yn brydlon am 10:30am a gorffen am 3:15pm. Bydd Arweinwyr a Phrif 
Weithredwyr, Swyddogion Cyllid, Penaethiaid Gwasanaethau perthnasol a Chadeiryddion 
Craffu Llywodraeth Leol hefyd yn cael cynnig dod i’r seminar. 
 
Dymuniadau gorau, 

 
Leighton Andrews AC / AM 
Y Gweinidog Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus  
Minister for Public Services    

Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 8 / Paper 8 

Tudalen y pecyn 81

mailto:Correspondence.Leighton.Andrews@wales.gsi.gov.uk


Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 82

Eitem 7 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	3 Ymchwiliad i’r Adolygiad o Siarter y BBC: sesiwn dystiolaeth 2 - BECTU, Equity ac Undeb Cenedlaethol y Newyddiadurwyr (NUJ)
	4 Papurau i’w nodi
	CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 2 (Saesneg yn unig)
	CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 3 (Saesneg yn unig)
	CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 4 (Saesneg yn unig)
	CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 5
	CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 6
	CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 7 (Saesneg yn unig)
	CELG(4)-27-15 Papur 8

	7 Trafod Bil Cymru Drafft



